ECOS RFP Draft #2

Questions and Answers

14 Oct 03

1. Please clarify the various time limitations identified for the Workforce Stability subfactor (Sec L, para 4.3.2), Experience subfactor (Attch L-3, para 5), and relevancy of Past Performance Information (Sec L, para 5.3.2).  Are these all the same?

As all past performance must be recent, and recency is defined as being within the past three years, the evaluated averages for both subfactors are the same – three years minimum to get a pass rating.  The reason for these limitations is that in the case of Workforce Stability, as Section M, Paragraph 2.1.2 states, the Government wants to ensure current employees are relevant to the past performance submitted.  The Workforce Stability factor will be considered passing when an average stability equal to or greater than three years is demonstrated.  The Offeror is allowed to identify beyond that, out to five years, since the years of stability will be averaged.  This definition of recency is also tied to the Experience subfactor.  Section M, Paragraph 2.1.4 states that the subfactor will be considered passing when any 6 of the 10 ECOS Task Categories have an average key personnel experience equal to or greater than three years.  Again, the Offeror is allowed to identify beyond that, out to five years, since the years of experience in each task category will be averaged.   

2. In the Presolicitation Conference, it was briefed that in arriving at the average experience for the key personnel provided in Attachment L-3 of the RFP, zeros would be factored in.  Request you reconsider and exclude zeros from the average. 

Contrary to what was briefed at the conference, zeros will not be averaged into the years of experience average that will be evaluated.

3. Will the Stability and Experience years we list in Attachment L-3 be rounded up in your evaluation when you calculate the total averaged years employed/worked?

Statements have been added to the Final RFP in Section M, Paragraphs 2.1.2(b) and 2.1.4(b) with an example of how normal rounding rules will be applied to the Government’s computation of average stability of key personnel and total average of key personnel work experience in each of the ten ECOS Task Categories.  Basically, years employed/worked will be rounded to the nearest tenth of a year (ie. 2.95 will be rounded to 3.0 and 2.94 will be rounded to 2.9).

4. Request that you relook and reconsider the Section M, Par 2.1.3 subfactor 1.3, Nationwide Coverage.  Almost all of the Small Business contractors for this work can work any where in the world.  Most companies will be selected at the task order level based on past experience with the Air Force customers or marketing effort, not by the amount of work experience in the geographical area.  I recommend that you select the best companies that can do the scope of work, technical selection, followed by the other criteria, and allow the SB prime to select the best local SB/SDBs to help execute at the task order level.
The evaluation criteria will not be changed.  The ECOS acquisition strategy is using the same evaluation criteria used by EMCOS and it produced a suite of contractors who have had consistently performed successfully on a wide variety of task orders accomplished in many different locations.  In addition, our market research for ECOS indicates there are small businesses that can meet the requirements as stated.  We understand some small businesses may decide to partner with large businesses to give the consolidated Team the experience needed to meet the criteria.  That approach is acceptable and encouraged in order to achieve our primary goal, which is, to have contractors in place to meet Air Force requirements.  

Furthermore, it is correct that the selection of a contractor for an individual Task Order has a different basis than the overall selection for this IDIQ contract.  Simply stated, Task Order contractor selection is one of best fit, and best value for a specific requirement at hand.  The evaluation criteria used for an IDIQ source selection paves the way for the customer to determine the contractor to successfully meet their specific Air Force requirement, by providing a contractual vehicle with contractors who all have the capability to meet their mission requirements, who have all performed successfully in the past, and who all offer competitive rates.
5. Electronic Formats: In the Questions and Answers from the Presolicitation Conference, Question/Answer 13, it states that Excel spreadsheets are preferred for Attachments L-3 and L-4. Per L.2.3.10.3, Electronic Copies, Volumes II and IV are to be provided in Microsoft Office 2000. Several items in Volumes II and IV (i.e., financial statements, bonding letters, audits) are not available in Microsoft Office, only in PDF formats. For ease of proposal production and evaluation, we suggest having a PDF Searchable Text format for all volumes, and the appropriate Attachments (L-3, L-4, and L-9) provided in Excel. 
The following has been added to Sec L, para 2.3.10.3(g):  Sections of a volume that are not available in the specified format can submitted in a format deemed appropriate by the Offeror.

6. Consistency Between Table 2.2 Proposal Organization, Tabs, and Volume Organization: Section L.2.2(d), states "In the event that this table (Table 2.2) conflicts with the detailed instructions in the paragraphs that follow, the detailed instructions shall take precedence." Paragraph 2.3.6(b) states "Tabs for items identified in the Title column of Table 2.2 Proposal Organization shall be utilized." In several instances (primarily in Volume II and IV, and somewhat in Volume III), the individual Volume Organizations and the detailed instructions conflict with Table 2.2 titles and the evaluation factors. Please provide additional guidance. 

The statement in Sec L, Para 2.2(d) has been deleted.  A comparison of the titles listed in Table 2.2 and contents of the RFP was accomplished, and the titles provided in Table 2.2 are correct and should be used in the ECOS proposals submitted to AFCEE.

7. Executive Summary/Page Limit for Organizational Plan: In Table 2.2, Proposal Organization, the stated page limit for "Organizational Plan (includes Executive Summary)" is 20 pages. In the same volume, Executive Summary is limited to 3 pages and it is included as the first tab of the Volume. Is the Executive Summary to be provided again in the same tab with the Organizational Plan to total 20 pages? Or is the Organizational Plan limited 17 pages? 

The request for the Executive Summary was inadvertently duplicated.  It has been deleted from the Organizational Plan tab.  The Organizational Plan is limited to 20 pages.

8. Attachment L-2, Labor Category Qualifications: In Draft Solicitation #2, several technical fields were deleted from the Bachelors degree requirement for the Project Manager. We would like AFCEE to consider adding those categories (engineer, geologist, hydrologist, chemist, or alternatively "engineering, science") back into the qualifications, plus add "construction science/management." Many Project Managers in the environmental construction, operations, and services industry have these engineering, scientific, and construction backgrounds. Further, the technical knowledge and management skills required to perform the ECOS SOW (and meet the other qualification requirements) substantiate having these qualifications. 

We agree.  The Project Manager labor category qualification has been rewritten.

9. In regards to the registration requirement for the Project Manager: item (b) states "Professional registration, where applicable." Please define "where applicable." Is this up to Offerors to interpret whether a registration is applicable for the education/background of the person and the type of work being performed? 

The professional registration requirement has been deleted.

10. Attachment L-3, Key Personnel Spreadsheet: In the Questions and Answers from the Presolicitation Conference, Question/Answer 20, it states that Attachment L-3 for Subfactor 1.2, Workforce Stability, should have only the first three columns completed (Name, Classification, Stability) and Attachment L-3 for Subfactor 1.4, Experience, should have all columns completed (Name, Classification, Stability, Category). In Draft Solicitation #2, it states in the Instructions to L.4.3.4 Experience, subparagraph (a)(1), "The Offeror shall provide information on technical and managerial capability and experience using the same electronic spreadsheets developed to display stability..." Please clarify. 

We are asking that Attachment L-3, when demonstrating Workforce Stability, only be completed up through the first three columns.  To avoid the creation of new spreadsheets for the Experience tab, we are asking that the same attachment (L-3), with all the identical information submitted under the Workforce Stability tab, be built upon and the last column completed. 

11. L.5.3.1.3, Organizational Structure Change History: Considering the page limitation for the Narrative section in Volume III and the wording in L.5.3.1.3, we are assuming that the Organizational Structure Change History is to be provided for the Offeror (prime contractor) only. Please clarify. 

Correct.  The Organizational Structure Change History submitted in the proposal shall be for the prime only.

12. L.5.5, Client Authorization Letters: Please confirm that client authorization letters are only required if a commercial customer is provided for PPIs/PPQs. 

This is correct.

13. Present/Past Performance Information (PPI) Forms: Will the web-based format be identical to the form provided in the RFP (i.e., provide the same amount of space)? Given the extent of information required on this form, we will be completing the form in Microsoft Word and copying and pasting it into the web-based form, so we want to make sure that we are planning appropriately. 

The web-based format will not be identical to the sample provided at Attachment L-5.  Questions 13 & 15 shown on the attachment will have a 4,000 keystroke limitation, including spaces, on the web-based system.  All other questions will have the amount of space sufficient for answering the questions (ie. dollar values, etc.), or will comprise of drop down boxes from which your selections can be made.

14. Past Performance Questionnaires: Comparing the ECOS presolicitation attendees with the WERC presolicitation attendees, it seems that many of the same firms will be submitting on both solicitations. If a firm is using the same projects for the PPI/PPQ that were used for WERC, we will be asking many of our clients to complete essentially the same questionnaire twice. To save government (and primarily AFCEE) expense and time in completing these questionnaires, would AFCEE consider receiving the same PPQ that our clients filled out for the WERC solicitation? 

This is not possible.  The PPQ questions for ECOS are tailored to provide the Government evaluators information pertinent to this requirement.  Furthermore, PPQs submitted for WERC are source selection sensitive and cannot be released to ECOS evaluators.  To streamline the process, all PPI information submitted will be retained in the PPQ Part I Section for references to verify.  They will not have to fill in all the data contained in Part I, merely verify it.  In addition, the Past Performance website is being designed to be easy-to-read and the PPQs will contain only 17 questions to reduce the time spent on completing them by the references identified.  

15. M002 Evaluation Criteria: In paragraph a, it states "Technical Excellence, which is the most important criterion for the acquisition, will be evaluated based upon the attached assessment criteria (see Attachment # _____ (insert attachment number) in descending order of importance)."  Is there a separate attachment that addresses this, or is it the criteria stated in M008?

The field has been updated to reflect Clause M008.  There are no separate attachments addressing assessment criteria.  

16. Why should team members have to submit financial statements?  I can fully understand why the Prime needs to, but question the relevancy and need for review of Team members.
Financial Stability of the team members is relevant since the Government evaluation of a team member’s capabilities will contribute to both the technical qualification and the past performance rating.

17. Why would the bonding requirements for this contract be radically different than the traditional bonding approach that you used for EMCOS or even ENRAC?  

In Volume II Mission Capability, Financial Capability paragraph 4.5.3(d)(1) requires proof of excess bonding of $1M.  FAR 28.102-1(a), the Miller Act, directs the Contracting Officer to obtain a bond for 100% of the value of the contractual order.  Each of the EMCOS contracts has had at least 1 Task Order of approximately $1M.  Our market research indicates works assignments of $1M are likely to occur during the ECOS ordering period.  

18. We do not think $5M is reasonable for small businesses.  What drives this limit?  

See answer to Question 17.    

19. Why is the proposed limit on ECOS different than the $3M limit that was established for WERC?  

Our market research indicates works assignments of $1M are likely to occur during the ECOS ordering period.  The WERC research must have had indications that $3M limit was appropriate

20. Has AFCEE contacted any surety companies to discuss with them changes that are occurring in the surety and bonding industry?  

No surety companies have been contacted.

21. Where did the proposed $5M requirement come from?
See answer to Question 17.    

22. L.3.8.2, Attachments to the Model Contract. Per this instruction, "The following is a list of attachments or exhibits, which will be made part of each ECOS Contract upon award." Should all these attachments, including the CDRLs and the SOW, be included in our proposal? 

No, this is just indicating that the listed attachments/exhibits will be made part of any subsequent contract award.  Your proposal requirements for Section L, Paragraph 3.8 include the signed Standard Form 33, along with completed Sections A through K and Section L attachments.  

23. Present/Past Performance Information (PPI) Form: Under Question 6, Contract Type, would "Independent Contract" be selected for an ID/IQ contract? 

On the web version, the question has been posed differently.  A separate question has been added asking whether the effort identified is an “Indefinite Delivery” contract.  This includes all Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (ID/IQ), Indefinite Delivery/Definite Quantity (ID/DQ), and Requirements contracts.  

24. PPI Form: If the web-based format will be identical to the form provided in the RFP, we suggest having the line spacing within Questions 13 and 15 changed to single space, and the font type to not be all capitals. This will allow Offerors to provide a detailed and compliant response to the questions, while not taking any more space within the form.
The web-based format will not be identical to Attachment L-5.  The web version will have a 4,000 keystroke limitation for Questions 13 & 15 of the attachment (approximately equal to one single spaced page of text, including spaces).

25. The instructions to Attachment L-3 Key Personnel Spreadsheet, paragraph 3, classifies "Construction Supervisor" as a key person, so they must be included in this spreadsheet; however, Construction Supervisor was deleted from Attachment L-2 and there are no qualification requirements listed for this labor category. Could you please clarify?

Attachment L-2, paragraph 1.4 has been corrected and “Construction Supervisor” has been added.

26. Page L-7 of 45.  In Table 2.2, Proposal Organization, for Volume II under Organizational Plan, the title is “Organizational Plan (Includes Executive Summary).”  Does this mean that the three pages allotted for the Executive Summary are part of the 20 pages allotted for the Organizational Plan?  Or are there a total of 23 pages allotted, 3 for the Executive Summary and 20 for the Organizational Plan?

See answer to Question 7.

27. Page L-10 of 45.  In 2.3.11.1(e), it states that the font size shall be no less than 12 point except for table cell, chart, graph or figure labels which shall be no smaller than 8 point.  In 2.3.11.2(f), it states for tables, charts, graphs and figures the font shall be no smaller than 8 point for foldouts.  What is the minimum allowable font size for text in tables, charts, graphs and figures?  

Section L, Para 2.3.11.1(e)(2) has been changed to read, “The font for table cell, chart, graph or figure labels or text in tables, charts, graphs or figures shall be no smaller than 8 point”.

28. Page L-16 of 45, Section 5.3.2.  We are concerned about the willingness of our contacts to prepare the PPQs online as required by the RFP.  Would you consider utilizing a system similar to that used for the WERC solicitation, whereby the offeror is responsible for preparing electronic PPIs/PPQs, including PPIs as part of the proposal package, and sending the electronic PPQs to its contacts for completion and forwarding to AFCEE?  Our references appreciated the options offered to them by AFCEE during the WERC proposal which allowed them to complete the PPQs by hand and fax them to AFCEE.

Any specific problems with obtaining PPQs from the listed references will be addressed by the ECOS Past Performance evaluators and/or the contracting officer.

29. Page L-16 of 45, Section 5.3.2.  Regarding the PPI Forms (Attachment L-5).  A PPI Cover Sheet identifying all 10 projects submitted and all Teaming Partners proposed for the ECPS contract shall be submitted.  Does this mean out of the 10 projects a PPI is required from all Teaming Partners?

A single cover sheet shall be provided that lists the 10 projects submitted.  This cover sheet should also list each of the teaming partners for the ECOS solicitation and any role played on the submitted projects.  The contractor shall determine the mix of projects to best demonstrate that proposed team members have previous experience on relevant past performance and that the team has the ability to perform the diverse scope of an ECOS contract.

30. Page L-17 of 45, Section 5.5.  Does AFCEE require completion of Client Authorization Letters for the Prime and Team Members regardless of whether or not PPIs for commercial customers are included in the proposal, or does AFCEE require them only if PPIs for commercial customers are included for the prime or one of its Team Members?

Only if the Prime or a Teaming Partner identifies Present/Past Performance efforts performed for a commercial customer, then you should submit a client authorization letter, authorizing the release of the requested performance information to the Government.
31. Page L-23 of 45, Attachment L-3, Key Personnel Spreadsheet.  Page H-17 lists Program Manager, Program QA/QC Manager, Health and Safety Manager, and Program Chemist as Key Personnel.  Page M-3, section 2.1.3(b) defines Key Personnel as Program Manager, Project Managers, Senior Engineers/Scientists, Contracting Administrator, and Construction Supervisors.  Please clarify what labor categories should be considered as Key Personnel for inclusion on the Key Personnel Spreadsheet and elsewhere within the proposal.

Attachment L-3, paragraph 3 defines Key Personnel as: Program Manager, Project Manager, Professional Labor (Senior or Mid only), or Construction Supervisor.  Section M 2.1.2(c) defines Key Personnel as:  Program Manager, Project Manager(s), Professional Labor (Senior and Mid level only), and Construction Supervisor(s).
32. Page L-31 of 45, the PPI Form in Attachment L-5, paragraph 15 refers to subfactor 1.3 experience.  Please note that Section L paragraphs 4.3 and 5.3.1.2 list experience as subfactor 1.4.


This question has been changed to read, “Describe your rationale supporting your assertion of relevance of the submitted contract to the ECOS acquisition. Clearly link the PPI to the ECOS SOW.”
33. Section C, the SOW paragraph 1.1 refers to worldwide use of ECOS, with emphasis on CONUS.  Could you please indicate the estimated level of effort anticipated under the ECOS for OCONUS?

It is not mandatory for the Air Force to choose AFCEE as their service agency, so it is difficult to predict the amount of work that will be performed under ECOS.  However, we do have two pieces of information.  One is historical and the other is a forecast.  The historical piece is that there were less than 5 EMCOS Task Orders for geographic locations other than CONUS.  The forecast piece is that there is OCONUS operating service work that is considering ECOS as the contractual vehicle.
34. Section L, page 4 – L024 was included in the June draft RFP but is not in the July RFP.  Will a CWBS be required?

No, a CWBS will not be required.

35. Page L-7, Section L. Table 2.2: Proposal Organization. For Volume II, you indicated you wanted the duplicate of the Executive Summary at 3 pages, and the Organizational Plan at 20 pages (in column heading “Page Limit”). However in the “Title” column it indicates that the Executive Summary is included in the 20 page limit. Please clarify whether the Organizational Plan is 17 or 20 pages.

See answer to Question 7.

36. Page L-9, Section L. 2.3.7(b)(1): Volume I, Contracting shall contain a consolidation of the individual Table of Contents for all Volumes (I-V). Shouldn’t that be I-IV?

Yes, the correction has been made.

37. Section L, 2.3.10.3: Electronic Copies. Please clarify what files you want as PDF only and what files you want as Word and/or Excel only. Per your table, it looks like the only files you want in Word or Excel are those contained in Volumes II and IV, but that on the Master CD, you want all files converted to PDF.

The preferred format for the Master CD is PDF, but if that is not appropriate, certain portions of it can be submitted in a different format (i.e. Word and Excel files created for volumes II and IV).  The following sentence was added to Sec L, Para 2.3.10.3 (g):  “Sections of a volume that are not available in the specified format can submitted in a format deemed appropriate by the Offeror”.

38. Page L-10, Section L.2.3.10.3: PDF Searchable files for Volumes I, III, and Master. It is our understanding that when you scan documents, the text is not searchable; (scanning is required for original, signed teaming agreements and authorization letters, to capture the signatures) that unless you convert them to OCR (and you lose all your formatting), you create a graphics file that cannot be searched (unlike converting a Word or Excel document directly to PDF).  Is there a method to make the text in scanned documents searchable?

The following sentence was added to Sec L, Para 2.3.10.3 (g):  “Sections of a volume that are not available in the specified format can submitted in a format deemed appropriate by the Offeror”.

39. Page L-10, 2.3.11.1: Font size. What are the font size limitations for the portions of the PPIs that we fill out? 

As the PPI Forms are online, the font size is irrelevant as it is set at a default for the website.  The question portions of the PPI Forms, Questions 13 & 15 of Attachment L-5, will be limited by keystroke.  See the answer to Question 13.

40. Page L-11. Section L. 2.3.11.2(g) Fold outs. “All information … shall be contained within an image area of 9 x 15 ½ inches.” Shouldn’t that be 9 x 15 (given 1” margins all around)?

Correct.  The paragraph has been changed to reflect an image area of 9X15 inches.

41. Page L-14, 4.3.2: Workforce Stability. If key personnel have been with their firms less than one year, may we round up to 1 year or use decimals (.5)?

Section M 2.1.2 Subfactor 1.2:  Workforce Stability states,“ normal rounding rules will apply when computing the average stability of key personnel (i.e. 2.95 will be rounded to 3.0, and 2.94 will be rounded to 2.9)”.

42. Page L-15, Section L. 4.3.5. Financial Capability. Please confirm that the team members must supply all of the information contained in 4.3.5(a) (1)-(4) (in sealed envelopes).

Section L 4.3.5(c) states, “ Team Members shall submit their current financial statements and other financial information to the Government through the Prime under individually sealed packages”.

43. Page L-16, Section L. 5.3.1: Narrative. Please confirm that we should only use three pages in total for the whole team (not three sheets if printed back/front) to include the discussion of Past Performance Summary, Relevance to Mission Capability Subfactors and Organizational Structure Change History? Small businesses might have multiple teaming partners, necessitating a more lengthy Organizational Structure Change History.

This concern has been noted and the RFP will be revised to allow 5 pages for this narrative.

44. Page 16, Section L. 5.3.2.1 Present/Past Performance Information Forms. For the PPIFs submitted with the proposal on the due date, do we print the pages out from the web and include those copies along with the summary page (as indicated on page L-17 for Vol III).

Yes, the PPI Forms should be included in the submitted proposal.  The online submittal system will have a printer friendly link that will allow you to print out all information submitted electronically.
45. Pages 16, Section L. 5.3.2.1, & 32 Attachment L-5 -  PPIFs Form Question 15.  Please clarify what is required:  “Clearly link the past performance information to the ECOS SOW, especially those SOW sections required in the mission capability subfactor 1.3 experience.” Page L-3 and M 2.1.3 lists 1.3 as Nationwide Coverage.  

See answer to Question 32.

46. Pages 16 & 32, Section L. 5.3.2.1. PPIF. Will there be any page/word limitations placed on the form, or will sections 13 and 15 be locked and limited in their font sizes?

See answer to Questions 13 and 39.

47. Page 17, Section L. 5.3.2.1(j). Each offeror is requested to submit information 15 days prior to the due date of the proposal. Must we submit them all at once or can we submit them as they are complete? What happens if your website has “catastrophic” errors, especially on the due date of the proposal?

Errors with the website will be addressed if they occur.  PPI Forms may be submitted via the website as they are completed.  Copies of all PPI Forms should be included in the Past Performance volume.  See answer to Question 44 above.

48. Page 17, Section L. 5.3.2.1(i). In (i), you ask us to provide information for the Government Program Manager, Project/Task Manager, Contracting Officer and Administrative Contracting Officer. If we are discussing one project in a PPI, is it acceptable to have one technical POC (ie, just the Project/TO Manager)

All relevant POCs should be identified.

49. Page 17, Section L. 5.3.2.2. If our references fill out the PPQs on line, and no one but AFCEE has access to them, what do we submit with our proposal? IE, do you want us to put a tab for the PPQs and supply a total list of all reference/contacts?

Section L, Paragraph 5.3.2.1(i) requires the submittal of references for each project.  There is no additional data required for Section L, Paragraph 5.3.2.2, just include the Tab.

50. Time limitations on information. Please confirm that the information contained on the Key Personnel Spreadsheets (L-3- page L-24), Nationwide Coverage Spreadsheets (L-4- page L-25), and Experience/Key Personnel Spreadsheets (L-3-page L-24), should be work within the past five years, and that the information presented on the PPI documents (L-5 – page L-27) should be within the past three years as stated on page 16, Section 5.3.2.  -  
However – on page L-14,  4.3.2(f) states “The Offeror shall list the number of years a key employee has been retained by their respective employer over the past five years.” Page M-3, Section M 2.1.2 states “The Government will evaluate the team’s key employees average retention time to ensure Present/Past Performance is recent and current employees are relevant to the current staff’s work performed within the past three years.”  Q&A, question 18 also indicates experience within the last five years.

Please see answer to Question 1.

51. Q&A of July 16 & 17 - Question 1 indicates a requirement of $5 million in excess bonding capacity.  Can this be changed to $5 million total bonding capacity?

No, the requirement remains as excess bonding capacity.  The requirement for excess bonding has been reduced to $1M.  Please reference answer to Question 17.

52. Will we have to PDF information that is submitted from our subs in sealed envelopes (financial information, etc)?
The following statement has been added to Sec L, Paragraph 2.3.10.3 (e):  “Any Teaming Partner information submitted in a sealed envelope shall also be provided in electronic format in the same sealed manner.  It is understood that this information will not be included in the volume CDs submitted by the prime.”

53. Attachment L-2 provides a description of various labor categories.  One of the minimum requirements listed for Project Manager is that the person must have a Bachelors degree from an accredited school in a technically related field such as: architecture, computer programming, computer systems, analysis, and industrial hygiene.  In the comments listed in the margin, it shows that the following were removed:  engineer, geologist, hydrologist, and chemist.  
Is this to mean that a Project Manager can not have one of these degrees (the ones that were removed) and that if an engineer (for example) is listed as key personnel, that person can only fill the role of Program Manager or Senior Engineer/Scientist (based on the descriptions provided)?

Attachment L-2 states, “the Project Manager shall have, as a minimum the following qualifications:

a)  Bachelors degree from an accredited school in a technically related field such as: engineering, science, or architecture.”

54. Can a person with a degree in engineering, geology, hydrology, or chemistry be classified as a Project Manager if that person meets all of the other required criteria for this labor classification?
See answer to Question 53.

55. Number 3 on Attachment L-3 “Key Personnel Spreadsheet” (Page L-23 of 45) states that only key personnel who meet the description of Project Manager, Program Manager, Senior Engineer/Scientist, Contract Administrator, or Construction Supervisor can be listed on this spreadsheet.  However, Paragraph (d) in Part I, Section H (Page 17 of 35) states that the following labor categories are designated as key personnel:  Program Manager, Program QA/QC Manager, Health & Safety Manager, and Program Chemist.  
Attachment L-2, under Paragraph 1.3 – Professional Labor (Architect/Engineer/Scientists), includes a description for “Senior Architect/Engineer/Scientist” (subparagraph c).  Is Number 3 on Attachment L-3 supposed to read “Senior Architect/Engineer/Scientist” instead of just “Senior Engineer/Scientist”?
See answer to Question 53.

56. While the Program Manager is listed as key personnel on both Attachment L-3 and in Paragraph (d) on page 17 of 35, the Program QA/QC Manager, Health & Safety Manager, and Program Chemist are not requested on Attachment L-3.  If additional labor classifications, such as Health & Safety Manager, are not to be included on Attachment L-3, how will these key personnel be evaluated?
Section L has been changed as follows: Attachment l-3 paragraph 3 defines Key Personnel as: Program Manager, Project Manager, Professional Labor (Senior or Mid only), or Construction Supervisor.  Section M 2.1.2(c) has been changed as follows: Key Personnel as:  Program Manager, Project Manager(s), Professional Labor (Senior and Mid level only), and Construction Supervisor(s).  These are the key personnel that are to be included in the Proposal and these are the key personnel that will be evaluated.

57. Can you please clarify or confirm the categories that can be included on the Key Personnel Spreadsheet in Attachment L-3?
See answer to Question 31.

58. Part IV – Section L (Page L-15 of 45):   Paragraph 5.3.1 states that the narrative information on relevant present/past performance provided in Volume III is required on all Teaming Partners and is limited to three (3) pages.  Is this limit for the overall narrative of the entire Team or is the limit referring to up to a three (3) page narrative for each Teaming Partner?
See answer to Question 43.

59. Attachment L-2, Paragraph 1.3(d) (Page L-21 of 45):  Should the Program QA/QC Manager and Program Chemist be listed under the Scientist category or Engineer category instead of the Architect category?
Attachment L-2, Paragraph 1.3 has been re-written and Program Chemist and Program QA/QC are under paragraph d. 
60. Reference Attachment L-3, paragraph 3. This paragraph defines the key personnel as only the Project Managers, Program Manager, Senior Engineer/Scientist, Contract Administrator, or Construction Supervisor. Attachment L-2, paragraph 1.3(c) defines Senior Architects/Engineers/Scientists and requires them to have a “minimum five years of directly applicable environmental experience since receiving degree.” Can you delete the word “only” and “senior” so that other qualified personnel with 5-10 years experience can be shown on the L-3? (Recommend it read: “List key personnel that are classified as a Project Manager, Program Manager, Architect/Engineer/Scientist, Contract Administrator, or Construction Supervisor.”)

Attachment L-3 paragraph 3 defines Key Personnel as Program Manager, Project Manager, Professional Labor (Senior or Mid only) or Construction Supervisor.  Attachment L-2, paragraph 1.3 defines a) Junior architect/engineers/scientists; b) Mid architect/engineer/scientists (requiring 5-10 years of directly applicable experience); c) Senior architect/engineer/scientists (requiring 10 years directly applicable experience); d) Labor categories.

61. Certain areas of ECOS, i.e. construction, wouldn’t necessarily require 10 years of “environmental experience” (according to the SOW description of what could be required under Construction); therefore, requiring the senior construction architects/engineers/scientists to have 10 years of environmental experience may eliminate good architects/engineers from being qualified as “senior” and “key personnel.”  Recommend AFCEE change the requirement for key personnel shown on L-3 to read, “Architects/Engineers/Scientists must possess a Bachelor’s degree from an accredited school in a technically related field consistent with the required duties of the position and a minimum of five (5) to ten (10) years experience on directly applicable environmental or engineering experience since receiving degree is required.”

Agree.  Please see answer to Question 60.

62. Reference Attachment L-3, Key Personnel Spreadsheet and Evaluation Factor 1.2(b). During the Presolicitation conference, the presenter said that AFCEE would count zeros in averaging the scores for each category.  The range of tasks is so varied (from construction to natural/cultural resources) and personnel generally do not work in more than 3-4 categories, will AFCEE consider not counting a zero in determining the averages? (i.e., if only 5 of 15 key staff members have experience in a category,  divide by 5 instead of 15.)

Agree.  Please see answer to Question 2.

63. In reviewing the evaluation criteria for Past Performance, it appears there is no additional weighting applied to a PPI addressing the Prime’s performance.  Specifically, it would appear a proposal with a preponderance of the PPI’s from the prime would be evaluated identical to a proposal where there was minimal input from the Prime and a significant PPI input from a large business subcontractor.

If that is the case, can we assume that a proven small business prime with the ability to provide multiple PPI’s would be given no additional weighting in comparison to a provider with limited ability to submit PPI's but extensive past performance credentials through teaming.

Typically a higher risk rating would be assigned where there is greater reliance on subs but it does not appear risk is a component of the Past Performance evaluation.

In Section L, Paragraph 4.3.1(c)(1) – Roles & Responsibilities, the prime is asked to explain how they will accomplish a “substantial amount of the work” being required in the ECOS SOW.  In evaluating the past performance submitted, the Performance Risk Assessment Group (PRAG) will be looking at the roles & responsibilities being proposed in the Offeror’s Organizational Plan.  If the prime, in their Organizational Plan, has successfully demonstrated their capacity to perform a substantial amount of the work, that capability will then have to be supported by the past performance information.  When the overall Performance Confidence Assessment (PCA) rating is given to an Offeror, it will then have taken into consideration not only the types of work accomplished, but also whether the PPIs submitted reflect the roles proposed.  Risk is inherent in this evaluation.  If a prime states they have the skills necessary to perform a substantial amount of the work, yet do not provide the PRAG with the past performance to prove that, the PCA rating will reflect a lesser confidence in the prime’s ability to perform the required effort.  

In summary, past performance information received on functions performed by team members that are not designated in the Offeror's proposed organizational plan to perform those functions will not be relevant and will not enhance the PRAG team’s confidence in the offeror to perform that function.   Although it is recognized that all possible task order scenarios cannot be addressed with only 10 past performance contracts, it is incumbent upon the offeror to provide PPI contracts that demonstrate a diverse amount of positive experience of the team members in the areas that they are proposed to perform on ECOS.
